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1.0
BACKGROUND

    1.1

                                                   Table1.  Identification

	1.1
Name of Beneficiary 
	

	1.3
Date of grant effectiveness 
	

	1.4 Closing Date

a) Original

b)
Revised
	

	1.5
Name of Project
	

	1.6
Purchaser 

a) Name

            b)
Address
	

	1.7
Contract Number
	

	1.8
Contract Description
	

	1.9
Cost Estimate
	

	1.10
Method of Procurement
	National Competitive Bidding (NCB)

	1.11
Prior review required
	

	1.12
Domestic Preference allowed
	

	1.13
Fixed Price Contract
	


2.0
INVITATION FOR BIDS
2.1 The African Capacity Building Foundation invited sealed bids from eligible and qualified bidders for the Supply, Delivery, Installation and Commissioning of Prefabricated Offices to The African Capacity Building Foundation - Harare.

2.2 Details of the Bidding Process are summarized in Table 2 below.

Table2.  Bidding Process

	1 General Procurement Notice

a) First issue date

b) Latest update
	15th June 2011

N/A

	2 Pre-qualification, if required

a) Number of firms pre-qualified

b) Date of Bank’s No-Objection
	N/A
N/A

	3 Specific Procurement Notice

a)
Name of National Newspaper

b)
Issue Date

a) Name of International Publication

b) Issue Date

c) Number of firms notified
	The Sunday Mail and The Financial Gazette
September 1 2013 and August 29 2013
DgMarket and ACBF website
Open Tender + Four (4No.) companies

	4 Standard Bidding Document

a) Title, Publication Date

b) Date of Bank’s No-Objection

c) Date of issue to bidders
	Tender for the Supply, Delivery, Installation and Commissioning of Prefabricated Offices to The African Capacity Building Foundation - Harare.
NA
25 July 2013

	      5  
Number of firms issued documents
	Twelve (12)


	      6
Amendments to documents, if any

a) Lists all issue dates

b) Date(s) of Bank’s No-Objection
	NA
NA

	   7     Date minutes of Conference sent  to     Bidders and Bank
	30 August 2013 – Pre-Bid Meeting with bidders


2.3.
The Tender Document of July, 2013, (Appendix I – Tender Document No. IFB No. ACBF/IFB/002/13 comprised the following:

(a)
Invitation for Bids 

(b)
Instructions to Bidders (ITB)

(c)
Bid Data Sheet

(d)
General Conditions of Contract (GCC)

(e)
Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)

(f)
Schedule of Requirements

(g)
Technical Specifications

(h) Bid Form and Price Schedules

(i) Bid Security Form

(j) Contract Form

(k) Performance Security Form

(l) Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment 

(m) Manufacturer’s Authorization Form

3.0
BIDS RECEIVED
3.1 The Tender closed on 13 September 2013 at 14.30 hours local time and the Bids were received and opened immediately thereafter. (See Table 3 below).

Table 3.  Bid Submission and Opening

	   1
Bid submission deadline

      a      Original date, time

      b      Extensions, if any
	

	   2
Bid opening date, time
	

	   3
Record of bid opening, date sent to the Bank
	

	   4
Number of bids submitted
	

	   5
Bid validity period (days or  


weeks)

      a     Originally specified

       b     Extensions, if any
	


3.1 At the time of Tender Closing, Four (4No.) Bids were received as per bid opening report (See Appendix II).  These are given in Table 4.

Table 4.  Information of Bids Received
	S/N
	Bidder
	Bid Withdrawal, Substitution, or Modification
	Bid Price
	Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration
	Bid Security Amount

	1.
	
	
	
	
	

	2.
	
	
	
	
	

	3.
	
	
	
	
	

	4.
	
	
	
	
	


4.0
EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA

4.1
Evaluation Committee

4.1.1 The evaluation was carried out by an Ad-hoc Evaluation Committee.  The Evaluation Team comprised 4 members as per below.  The evaluation was carried out on 23 September 2013 at ………………….
4.1.2 TEC Composition

i. ……………. – Chair

ii. ……………… – member

iii. ………………. – member

iv. ………………. – member
4.2
Evaluation Criteria

4.2.1
The TEC held a preliminary meeting on Friday 20 September for purposes of familiarizing themselves with the Bidding Documents and for Procurement to provide guidance on how the evaluation process would be conducted, as well as clarify any queries raised by the committee. The Evaluation Committee members then determined the evaluation criteria contained in the following clauses of the bidding Document:

(i)
Preliminary Examination (ITB Clause 24)

(ii) Evaluation and Comparison of Bids (ITB Clause 26)

4.2.2 The Evaluation Committee reviewed the proposed sub criteria for Preliminary and Technical Examination and agreed that the main evaluation items be as listed in Table 5 below:
Table 5. Preliminary and Technical Examination Criteria

	SN
	Criteria

	
	
	Bidder

	
	
	1
	2
	3
	4

	1.
	Verification 
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Form Submission, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 23
	
	
	
	

	
	· Signed?
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bid Form as per Sample Form in SBD?
	
	
	
	

	
	· All pages initialed? 
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Validity Period (90 days) provided? 
	
	
	
	

	
	Price Schedules Signed?
	
	
	
	

	
	Technical literature (in English) describing goods offered?
	
	
	
	

	
	Verification?  

Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	2.
	Eligibility of Bidder and Goods (ITB 16.1; 17.1; 18.1; 18.2,18.3 and 18.4)
	
	
	
	

	
	Completed Bid Submission Form?
	
	
	
	

	
	Completed country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms?
	
	
	
	

	
	Manufacturers Authorization?
	
	
	
	

	
	Eligibility?  


Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	3
	Bid Security (ITB Clause 21.1; 21.2; 21.3; 21.4)
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Security Amount or Bid security Declaration of not less than 2%?
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Security Form as per SBD?
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Security Validity (90 days) 
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Security


Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	4
	Completeness of Bid (ITB Clause )
	
	
	
	

	
	Does bid include all items in Lot? (ITB 1.1)
	
	
	
	

	
	Price Schedules completed in full?  (ITB 1.1)
	
	
	
	

	
	Documentation establishing Bidders Qualifications? (ITB 19.1)
	
	
	
	

	
	Completeness?  

Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	5
	Substantial Responsiveness (ITB)
	
	
	
	

	
	(i) Technical Compliance (Section IV: 3)
	
	
	
	

	
	
Conformity of proposed goods / services to technical specification 
	
	
	
	

	
	Technical Compliance?  
Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	
	(ii) Commercial Compliance (SCC16.1; GCC 28.3 Schedule of Requirements; )
	
	
	
	

	
	
Payment Terms?
	
	
	
	

	
	
Delivery Period 
	
	
	
	

	
	After sales services offered?
	
	
	
	

	
	
Warranty of 12 months?
	
	
	
	

	
	Commercial Compliance?  
Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	
	Substantial Responsiveness? Yes/No
	
	
	
	

	
	Accepted for Detailed Examinations? Yes/No
	
	
	
	


4.3 Evaluation Procedure

4.3.1 The Committee noted that the bids received were given serial numbers at the time of bid opening (See Table 4).  The serial numbers were therefore adopted and used herein after to refer to the bids. For purposes of facilitating the evaluation, the committee agreed to individually read through the bids received in alongside the established criteria for the preliminary, technical and commercial evaluation, then meet to collectively undertake the evaluation. The evaluation date was set for 23 September 2013
5.0
RESULTS AND ANALYSIS
5.1 Results of Preliminary Examination.

5.1.1
Using the Evaluation Criteria elaborated in paragraph 4.2.2 and table 5 above, Score Sheets were prepared and members of the Evaluation Committee evaluated each bid and filled in the Score Sheets. 

Clarifications would only be sought from the bidders recommended for award of contract on minor deviations to be clarified.

5.1.1 The summary of the Preliminary Examination results are presented in Table 6 while the details of the Preliminary and Technical Examination Results and comments are presented in Appendix (III) and (IV) respectively.  
Table 6 Summary of Preliminary and Technical Examination Results

	SN
	Evaluation Criteria
	Bidder

	
	
	1
	2
	3
	4

	1
	Verification 


	YES
	YES
	YES
	YES

	2
	Eligibility 



	YES
	YES
	YES
	YES

	3
	Bid Security



	NO
	YES
	YES
	YES

	4
	Completeness 


	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	5
	Technical Compliance 

	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	6
	Commercial Compliance?  

	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	
	Substantial Responsiveness 
	NO
	YES
	NO
	YES

	
	Accepted for Detailed Examinations
	NO
	YES
	NO
	YES


KEY:


Y – Complied 
       YES – Substantially Responsive, Accepted for detailed examination
N – Not Complied

NO – Non-Responsive    

5.1.2 Arising from the Preliminary and Technical Examination, 2 bids, being Bidder No. 2 and Bidder No. 4, were determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding document and therefore proceeded to the next stage of evaluation which is Price Analysis.  The bidders who qualified for detailed evaluation are indicated in Table 7.

Table 7.  Bidders Qualified for Detailed Evaluation

	Bid No.
	

	
	

	
	


5.2 Analysis of Prices

5.2.1 The Evaluation Committee checked for any arithmetical errors and discounts that may have been offered by the responsive bidder. There were no arithmetical errors or discounts from the two bidders. (See Table 8).

Table 8.  Corrections and Unconditional Discounts

	Bid

No.
	
	Read-out Bid Price(s)
	Corrections
	Corrected Bid Price(s)
	Unconditional Discounts
	Corrected/

Discounted

 Bid Price(s)



	
	Currency

(ies)
	Amount(s)


	Total Amount
	Computa-

tional 

Errors
	Source of Error


	
	Percent
	Amount(s)
	

	2
	USD
	
	
	NIL
	NIL
	
	NIL
	NIL
	

	4
	USD
	
	
	NIL
	NIL
	
	NIL
	NIL
	


5.3
Domestic Preference


The Evaluation committee noted that Domestic Preference was not applicable.

5.4
Currency Conversion and Ranking

The Evaluation Committee did not carry out any currency conversion or ranking as there was only one responsive bidder.
6.0
POST QUALIFICATION EVALUATION
After conducting the price analysis for both bidder no2 and bidder no4, the committee determined the lowest evaluated bid, being bidder no 2 for the total price of USD (CIP) in accordance with ITB sub-clause 37.1, and proceeded to conduct the post-qualification evaluation of the lowest evaluated bid in accordance with ITB clause 38 using requirements as specified in Appendix 5. After evaluating all documentary evidence of the bidder’s qualifications as submitted by the bidder, the evaluation committee noted its satisfaction that the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bidder is qualified to perform the contract satisfactorily.
7.0
RECOMMENDATION

Upon the conclusion of the entire evaluation process the Evaluation Committee recommends that the Contract for the Supply, Delivery, Installation and Commissioning of Prefabricated Offices to The African Capacity Building Foundation - Harare be awarded to ………… at their quoted Bid Price of ………….. with terms and conditions as in the Bidding Document.
7.1
The recommended award and contract details are summarized in Table 9.

Table 9 - Proposed Contract Award Details

	1.
Lowest evaluated responsive bidder

(proposed for contract award)

a) Name

b) Address
	

	2.
If bid submitted by agent, list actual supplier

Name


Address
	NA

NA
	

	3.
If bid from joint venture, list all Partners, nationalities, and estimated shares of contract.
	NA

	

	4.
Country(ies) of origin of goods/materials

	

	5.
Time table for contract signing

a) Evaluation Report submitted to 
Procurement Specialist
b) Authority from Office of the Executive Secretary
 c)
Evaluation Report submitted to     ACBF,
            d)
No Objection from ACBF 

            e)
Preparation of Contract Document

            f)            Notification of Award

            g)           Date of Contract Signing
	

	6.
Estimated delivery date
	
	

	
	Currency (ies)
	Amount(s) or %

	7.          Bid Price(s) (Read-out)
	
	

	8.
Corrections for Errors
	NIL


	NIL

	9.
Discounts
	NIL
	NIL

	10.
Other Adjustments
	NIL
	NIL

	11.
Proposed Award
	
	


Technical Evaluation Committee

	Name
	Signed
	Date

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


APPENDIX I -Tender Document

(Available at ACBF)

APPENDIX II -Record of Bid Opening
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APPENDIX III - Preliminary Examination of Bids Score Sheet Results
	SN
	Criteria

	
	
	Bidder

	
	
	1
	2
	3
	4

	1.
	Verification 
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Form Submission, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 23
	
	
	
	

	
	· Signed?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	· Bid Form as per Sample Form in SBD?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	· All pages initialed? 
	N
	N
	N
	N

	
	Bid Validity Period (90 days) provided? 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Price Schedules Signed?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Technical literature (in English) describing goods offered?
	Y
	Y
	N2
	Y

	
	Verification?  

Yes/No
	YES
	YES
	YES
	YES

	2.
	Eligibility of Bidder and Goods (ITB 16.1; 17.1; 18.1; 18.2,18.3 and 18.4)
	
	
	
	

	
	Completed Bid Submission Form?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Completed country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Manufacturers Authorization?
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Eligibility?  


Yes/No
	YES
	YES
	YES
	YES

	3
	Bid Security (ITB Clause 21.1; 21.2; 21.3; 21.4)
	
	
	
	

	
	Bid Security Amount or Bid security Declaration of not less than 2%?
	N
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Bid Security Form as per SBD?
	N
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Bid Security Validity (90 days) 
	N
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Bid Security


Yes/No
	NO1
	YES
	YES
	YES

	4
	Completeness of Bid (ITB Clause )
	
	
	
	

	
	Does bid include all items in Lot? (ITB 1.1)
	Y
	Y
	N3
	Y

	
	Price Schedules completed in full?  (ITB 1.1)
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Documentation establishing Bidders Qualifications? (ITB 19.1)
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y

	
	Completeness?  

Yes/No
	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	5
	Substantial Responsiveness (ITB)
	
	
	
	

	
	(i) Technical Compliance (Section IV: 3)
	
	
	
	

	
	
Conformity of proposed goods / services to technical specification 
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y

	
	Technical Compliance?  
Yes/No
	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	
	(ii) Commercial Compliance (SCC16.1; GCC 28.3 Schedule of Requirements; )
	
	
	
	

	
	
Payment Terms?
	Y
	Y
	N
	N

	
	
Delivery Period 
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y

	
	After sales services offered?
	N
	N
	N
	Y

	
	
Warranty of 12 months?
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y

	
	Commercial Compliance?  
Yes/No
	YES
	YES
	NO
	YES

	
	Substantial Responsiveness? Yes/No
	NO
	YES
	NO
	YES

	
	Accepted for Detailed Examinations? Yes/No
	NO
	YES
	NO
	YES


Key:  
( 
-
Complied


             X   -
Not-Complied



YES
-
Substantially Responsive/Accepted
NO -
Non-Responsive/ Not Accepted

NS
-
Not Stated                                                NA - Not Applicable
NOTES ON PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION

1. Two of the four Bidders, being Bidder No. 2 and Bidder No. 4 complied with the requirements of the preliminary examination and were evaluated as being substantially responsive to bid requirements. Consequently these two bids were accepted for detailed examinations, and the remaining bids, Bidder no.1 and Bidder no. 3 were evaluated as being non-responsive and not accepted for detailed examinations.
1.1
Bidder no. 1 (Groundswell Events Pty Ltd) 
The committee noted that the Bid submitted did not contain documentation for the Bid Security Amount or Bid Security Declaration as required under ITB Clause 21 of the bidding document which states that the bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, a Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration a specified in the BDS. The BDS under ITB 21.1 and 21.2 requested a Bid security of 2% of the bid sum. ITB 32.2 states that;

32.2
The Purchaser shall confirm that the following documents and information have been provided in the Bid.  If any of these documents or information is missing, the offer shall be rejected.

(a)
Bid Submission Form, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 12.1;

(b)
Price Schedules, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 12.2;

(c)
Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB Clause 21, if applicable.
As such, as the bid did not contain the requisite Bid Security documents and as per clause above, Bid no1 was consequently rejected and declared Non-Responsive to the bid requirements.
1.2
Bidder no. 3 (Smart Building Solutions)  
The committee noted the following material deviations in the bid submitted by bidder no. 3;

SN1: Technical literature in English describing goods offered 

Whist a list of goods being offered was present in the bid document, the committee noted that the technical description of goods and the specifics of the materials was missing in the documentation submitted, therefore it was difficult to ascertain whether the goods being offered were in fact conforming to goods requested in the Schedule of Requirements provided in the bid document. 
SN 4: Does bid include all items in Lot (ITB 1.1)

The schedule of goods as presented in the bid does not include all items as specified in the Schedule of requirements in the bid document. Furthermore product specifications are not detailed enough to facilitate verification of listed goods against technical specification requirements of goods to be supplied. The committee considered this a major deviation as, ideally the firm that is contracted to undertake this task should be capable of providing all goods as requested or provide suitable alternatives to requested goods should they not be available. As bid did not provide alternatives for goods that are not available, this point was evaluated as being non-responsive.

SN5: Delivery Period.

The delivery period in the bidder’s document was not clearly specified therefore it was difficult to ascertain whether the final delivery period falls within the required range. This was deemed a major deviation by the committee as the whole project is extremely time sensitive. 

APPENDIX IV - Technical Compliance Score Sheet Results
	Item
	Specifications as per Bidding Document
	Compliance

	
	
	Bidder

	
	
	1
	2
	3
	4

	1
	Design, Supply, Transport And Erection Of Prefabricated Offices on site on a suspended floor as per the drawings provided:
	
	
	
	

	
	· SA Laminate heavy traffic flooring for entire space incl kitchen cupboards
	✔
	✔
	(2
	✔

	
	· Air conditioning system.
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Power points with square plug points as per design specifications.
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Ducts for networking as per design specifications.
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Size – 701m2 
	✔
	(1
	(
	✔

	
	· 18mm CCA treated ply floor on lip channel chassis
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· 40mm thick 2.7m height White Chromadeck sandwich panels
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· light frame steel trusses
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Charcoal coloured Chromadeck roof sheets
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Charcoal coloured Chromadeck trim, 
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· suspended ceiling with height of 2.6m 
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· top hung aluminum windows with aluminum burglar bars 
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Chromadeck door frames and Aluminum glass or wooded doors
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· 3 double expandable security gates
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Toilet, light and electrical fittings as per drawing
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	· Air conditioners as per drawing
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔

	
	
	✔
	✔
	(
	✔


Key:

✔
-
Complied



(
-
Not complied





NA
-
Not applicable   



YES
-
Substantially Responsive

             

 NO
-
Non-Responsive

NOTES ON TECHNICAL COMPLIANCE NOTES
Bidder No. 2

(1
The bidder stated a size of 673m2 instead of the requested 701m2, causing a variation of 28m2. The committee noted that as the variation is size is small there may be factors such as exclusion of external passageway that could have led to this variation. The committee noted that the size variation would not alter the bid price by a substantial amount and as the specifications of the materials to be supplied by the bidder as presented in the bid documents were very good, the committee then determined this variation as a minor deviation, which could be verified with the bidder should they be recommended for contract award.
Bidder No. 3

(2
Bidder no. 3 was evaluated as not being technically compliant as product specifications provided were not detailed enough to enable their verification against technical specifications outlined in the bid document. As such it was difficult to ascertain and confirm that proposed goods would indeed meet the product requirements as required by ACBF. 

APPENDIX IV – Post Qualification Evaluation Results

Requirements specified are as outlined in the text below;
Bidder No. 2
	
	Evaluation Requirement
	Comments / Observations

	(a)
	Financial Capability

   The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence that it meets the following financial requirement(s): (i) Audited financial statements for the past three years / or letter of reference from bankers, (ii) Average Annual turnover covering the last three years of at least 3 times the bid price. 
	Bidder has submitted audited financial statements for the past three years as well as a letter of reference from its bank. Analysis of statements portrays financial stability of company and financial ability to fulfill contract.

	(b)
	Experience and Technical Capacity

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that it meets the following experience requirement(s): 
	

	
	(1) Expertise and experience in similar work and supply, preferably for office premises and with technical capability judged from previous similar completed assignments /contracts;

Client references and/or citations from prior installations where similar services have been provided for projects of similar size and scope
	Documentation supplied includes work done in the construction of modular offices for various South African companies such as Eskom and Witbank clinic, the UNDP and Zambian organizations, thus demonstrating their vast experience. Documentation also includes pictorial and diagrammatic evidence of previous work undertaken. Documentation includes contactable references and invoices issued to the various clients thus demonstrating similar scope and size of services rendered.

	
	(2) Demonstrated ability to provide after sales support services for the maintenance of prefabs as defined in the specifications and drawings provided.
	After-sales services are not explicitly mentioned in the bid document. This area will require further clarification if recommended for contract award. As the bidder has a local representative, issue should be raised during negotiation for provision of such services through the local representative.

	(c)
	The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that the Goods it offers meet the following usage requirement: Documentary evidence that the goods are current and can perform for at least 5 years without difficulties or defects in workmanship
	The brochure included in the document states that good offered have a life span of 12 years and may be repainted. The brochure also provides information on guarantee and warranty of goods in addition to the all- inclusive technical description of goods detailing their qualities.


ii
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